
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Monica Bell, Democratic Services (01254) 380114 
Email:  monica.bell@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 14 March 2018 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Thursday, 22 March 2018 at 10.00 am, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Abdul Khan 
 
Councillors Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Terry Hurn, Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane and 
Paddy Short 
 
Cooptees: Ian Ormerod and Paul Barton 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the meeting of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 19th February 2018 for approval as a correct record. 

Recommended - That the Minutes be received and approved as a 
correct record. 

 

3.   Planning Business Plan Update  (Pages 9 - 14) 
 
To provide an update on the Planning and Transportation Service Business Plan. 

Recommended - That the report be noted. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

4.   Major Planning Applications  (Pages 15 - 20) 
 
To provide an update on Major Planning Applications within Hyndburn. 

Recommended - That the report be noted. 
 

5.   Hyndburn Leisure Trust Update Report  (Pages 21 - 28) 
 
To present planned developments across Hyndburn Leisure to promote organisational 
sustainability and to improve health and wellbeing outcomes for Hyndburn residents. 

Recommended - That the report be noted. 
 

 
 



 
178 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Monday, 19th February, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Jenny Molineux (in the Chair),  

Councillors Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Terry Hurn and 
Tim O'Kane 
Co-optee:  Mr. Ian Ormerod 
 
 

In Attendance: Councillor Miles Parkinson, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Paul Cox, Deputy Leader of the Council 
Councillor Clare Cleary, Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration 
Councillor Munsif Dad, Portfolio Holder for Health and Communities 
Councillor Gareth Molineux, Portfolio Holder for Resources 
Councillor Tony Dobson, Leader of the Conservative Group 
Councillor Judith Addison 
Three Members of the Public 
 

  

Apologies: Councillors Abdul Khan and Paddy Short 
 

 
344 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Abdul Khan and Paddy Short and 
Mr. Paul Barton (Co-optee). 
 
Councillors Joyce Plummer and June Harrison attended the meeting as substitute 
representatives for Councillors Abdul Khan and Paddy Short respectively. 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

345 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the 14th 
December 2017 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

346 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2020/21 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Gareth Molineux) submitted a report giving 
the Council’s Medium Term Financial Position for 2018/19 to 2020/21.  The Strategy was 
attached to the report and set out the three year projections of income and spending for the 
Council ahead of formulating its savings plans so it could set an Annual Budget for 2018/19.   
 
Appendix 1 of the Strategy set out a standard model and further scenarios were provided in 
Appendix 2 with a pessimistic model and Appendix 3 detailing an optimistic model. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
179 

The figures in Appendix 1 however remained the current best estimate of the likely financial 
position over the next three years.  The report addressed the following aspects and had 
been submitted to Cabinet on 14th February 2018:- 
 

 Introduction 

 Objectives 

 Elements of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Service Planning to Support Overall Strategy 

 Integrated Resource Planning with Service Plans 

 Background Information 

 Financial Analysis 2018/19 to 2020/21 

 Resources 

 Government Grant 

 Council Tax 

 Expected loss of income 

 Changes in Costs 

 Growth 

 Reserves 

 Other Assumptions 

 Scenarios 

 Robustness of Forecast 

 Overall Net Position 
 
A number of responses were provided by Councillor Gareth Molineux to the advanced 
questions submitted, which included: 
 

 How will the exit from the EU affect the finances of the Council in the medium term? 

 In terms of reserves, do we benchmark against other similar councils as to the 
amount we hold? With further Government cuts planned, is there any need for us to 
increase our level of reserves? 

 The report states that, for business rate growth, the Council will retain 50%, or 100% 
is we enter into a pool. Will we be entering into a pool and if so how will this work? 

 Will Council tax benefit remain with the Council after Housing benefit goes into 
Universal Credit? 

 Will the Council continue discussions with LCC to try to reinstate the cost share 
agreement for recycling? 

 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

347 Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 2018/19 to 
2020/2021 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report setting out the Council’s policy and 
objectives with respect to treasury management, to explain how it would achieve its 
objectives and manage its activities and to agree an investment strategy for 2018/19.   
 
Appendix 1 detailed the minimum revenue provision policy statement 2018/19. Appendix 2 
provided information of the treasury management policy statement 2018/19 and appendix 3 
was the HBC Treasury Management Practices 2018/19. 
 
No advanced questions had been submitted for this agenda item.  
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
180 

The report addressed the following aspects and had been submitted to Cabinet on 14th 
February 2018:- 
 

 Prudential Code and Prudential Indicators 

 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing Requirement 

 Estimated Capital Expenditure 

 Minimum Revenue Provision 

 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

 Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 – 2020/21 

 External Debt Overall Limits 

 External v Internal Borrowing 

 Limits on Activity 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 Investment Strategy 

 Treasury Management Practices (TMP) 

 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers 

 Treasury Management Strategy In-Year and Year End Reporting 
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

348 General Revenue Budget 2018/19 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report setting out proposals for the 2018/19 
General Fund Revenue Budget which also provided an overview of key issues which had 
arisen from the Medium Term Financial Strategy.   
 
The 2018/19 Revenue Budget required a net expenditure of £11,174,000 under the budget 
proposals detailed in appendices 1 and 2. 
 
Council Tax for Hyndburn residents would rise for Hyndburn Council provided services by 
£5.00 per year for a Band D property.  Altham Parish Council had set a separate precept for 
its activities and there was no increase on its charge. 
 
The following information was attached to the report, which had been submitted to Cabinet 
on 14th February 2018:-   
 

 Appendix 1  -  Initial Outline Budget 2018/19 

 Appendix 2  -  Revenue Budget 2018/19 

 Appendix 3  -  Savings Proposals 2018/19 

 Appendix 4  -  Hyndburn Borough Council Tax Increase 2018/19 by Property Band 

 Appendix 5  -  Overall Change in Council Tax 2018/19 

 Appendix 6  -  Altham Parish Precept 2018/19 by Property Valuation Band 
 
A number of responses were provided by Councillor Gareth Molineux to the advanced 
questions submitted, which included: 
 

 A recommendation gives delegated responsibility to the Deputy Chief Executive to 
draw on reserves if needed. Is this up to a certain level e.g. at what point would 
Cabinet approval be required? 

 Why is the New Homes Bonus down £226k this year? Can we do more to 
encourage house building? Do we have local powers to ease planning restrictions 
on certain sites? 

 What actions are being taken to address the deficit in the Market Hall budget? 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
181 

 Do we have measures in place to minimise the risk of supplier failure, particularly for 
large contracts? 

 
The following questions related to individual savings items identified in Appendix 3 and 
responses were given to the issues raised by the Committee: 

 
 The overtime budget for Waste Services enforcement is reducing by £2.4k. Fly 

tipping is a major concern for residents, therefore is it wise to reduce this budget? 

 How will £27k of additional income be gained from the Crematorium? 

 How will recycling income increase by £28k? 

 How will we generate £8k from street naming? 

 The Mayoral Overtime budget has been removed? Will this restrict the support for 
the Mayor in the coming years? 

 Cannon Street building is still costing the Council. Are we any closer to selling the 
building? 

 Is the £227k saving for the Leisure Trust achievable, bearing in mind the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy identifies “the continuing trading difficulties experienced by 
Hyndburn Leisure” as a risk? 

 
Questions were also asked from members of the public and individual Members of the 
Council in attendance at the meeting in relation to: 
 

 Level of subscription to the green bin collection service 

 Budget proposed for events in the new town square 
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted and supported. 
 

349 Capital Programme 2018/19 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report relating to the Council’s capital 
investment priorities for 2018/19 and asked Cabinet on the 14th February 2018 to 
recommend to the Council a capital programme for approval at its meeting on 22nd 
February 2018, having regard to key linkages between the management of the Council’s 
capital and revenue resources.   
 
A Capital Programme for 2018/19 of £4,939,283 gross was attached to the report in 
Appendix 1.   
 
Reference was made to Accrington Town Centre investments including the Town Hall and 
Market Hall, disabled facility grants, Woodnook housing stock, sports facilities, a safe house 
and Christmas decorations.  
 
Responses were given to the following questions raised by the Committee:-  
 

 What is the ATH Phase 4 project and how will it benefit the Council? 

 Is the £30k safe house investment in a new safe house or to improve the current 
one? 

 You state that the council is going to increase its funding for disabled adaptations for 
the residents of Hyndburn. Do you have any money set aside to support with the 
advertising of the funding and processing of applications as in the past, this grant 
funding hasn't been up taken and also if the council doesn't allocate all it's funding 
for the next  year, will this have a negative impact on subsequent funding from 
central government? 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
182 

 The report states that the council plans to put money aside for supporting with 
Christmas in our townships. Could you please clarify how this money is going to be 
spent? I.E are the funds going to be split in regards to township size by population?  

 What will the town hall service yard improvements entail? 

 What Market and Market Hall Improvements are planned? 

 Is the £1.1million allocated to Woodnook to continue the current scheme of 
improvements to existing houses? 

 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted and supported. 
 

350 Opposition Group  -  Budget Proposal 2018/19 
 
The Opposition Group (Conservative Group) circulated at the meeting alternative proposals 
for the Council’s 2018/19 Budget and the Leader of the Group (Councillor Tony Dobson) 
discussed each of the proposals in detail which included: 
 

 Extra trade waste income generated by the Cleansing Team  

 Council loans to business investors in the borough 

 Dividend from Globe Enterprises 

 MOT centre to provide services for residents and commercial trade 

 Bulky Goods service transferred to the British Heart Foundation  
 
Responses by Councillor Dobson were given to questions raised by the Committee and 
Leader of the Council. 
 
The extra income of £159,000 along with reducing reserves by £250,000 would provide an 
expenditure of £409,000 for the floral market town initiative and the Conservative town 
centre action plan. 
 
Resolved - That the budget proposals to the Committee by the  

Opposition Group (Conservative Group) be noted and the 
Leader of the Conservative Group be thanked for his 
contribution to the discussions of the Committee. 

 
351 The Leader of the Council to Receive Representations and Questions from Members 

of the Public and Individual Members of the Council on the Budget 
 
Members of the Public had been invited to attend the meeting to hear about budget 
proposals and to ask questions about the budget if they so wished.  Three residents were in 
attendance, one of whom raised a question in relation to the collection charge for green bin 
waste. The Leader of the Council responded with information to the issues raised. 
 

352 Summary of Overview and Scrutiny Comments and Resolutions to be presented to 
Council 
 
The Chair referred to the need to submit a summary of the discussions held and decisions 
reached during the meeting of the Committee to full Council on the 22nd February 2018. 
 
Resolved - That Council be requested to note the following  

resolutions of the Committee:- 
 
(1) That the contents of the following reports be noted:- 

 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
183 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to  
2020/21 
Prudential Indicators and Treasury  Management &  
Investment Strategy 2018/19 to 2020/21 

    General Fund Revenue Budget 2018/19  
    General Fund Capital Budget 2018/19 
 

(2) That the Committee thanks the Leader of the  
Council, Portfolio Holder for Resources and Leader of the 
Opposition for their participation in the scrutiny meeting 
and debate. 

 
(3) That the HBC Deputy Chief Executive and all other 

Officers involved, be commended for their work in 
producing the budget. 

 
   (4) That having reviewed and debated the budget  

submitted, the contents of the revenue and capital budget 
reports be supported as outlined. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 8



 

 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 22 March 2018 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Miles Parkinson, Leader 

REPORT AUTHOR: Chief Planning and Transportation Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Planning Business Plan Update 

EXEMPT REPORT  

(Local Government 

Act 1972, Schedule 

12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 

  

1. Purpose of Report 

 

1.1 To provide an update on the Planning and Transportation Service Business Plan. 

 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1 That the report be noted.  

 

3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 

 

3.1 The Planning and Transportation Service Plan for 2017-18 is attached.  The Service Plan 

seeks to communicate the strategic service objectives and the more detailed service objectives 

in a clear and understandable format.  The Plan also sets out the means by which the 

performance of the different service areas is measured.   

 

3.2 Recognising that there is a need for continuous improvement in the way that services are 

delivered, an external consultant is currently undertaking a review of the Development 

Management and Building Control elements of the service.  If there are any key 

recommendations that come out of this review these can form part of a revised Service Plan for 

2018/19.   

 

3.3 The service is performing strongly and delivering the majority of its objectives.  Performance 

figures in relation to the determination of planning applications are published on the DCLG 

website.  The service is also progressing with the local plan in accordance with the agreed 

timetable.   

 

3.4 From a financial perspective the service has also continued to perform strongly.  Most of the 

costs associated with managing the allotments service are now covered by rental income and 

planning application income has also increased in recent years.  The service therefore 

continues to perform within budget.   

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3.



 

 

3.5 Recruitment of experienced building control officers and planning officers is becoming 

increasingly difficult and this presents a risk to both the delivery of the service and the financial 

management of the service.  The costs associated with the use of consultancies/agencies to 

supply staff is significantly greater than the costs associated with salaried employees.  

 

4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 

 

4.1 There are a variety of different approaches to developing a Service or Business Plan.  In is 

important that officers are not inundated with pages of information and that the key messages 

and service standards are properly understood.  The chosen format allows officers to put the 

Service Plan on their wall or pin it up next to the computer so it is readily visible.   

 

4.2 If the number of performance indicators is properly managed these can be reinforced at regular 

intervals so that officers are aware of the importance attached to these.   

 

4.3 In addition to the service priorities set out in the Plan, there are also some site specific priorities 

that relate to the development of Frontier Park, Highams Playing Fields and the Masterplan at 

Huncoat that officers are/were aware of.  The previous year, the development of Lyndon 

Playing Fields was also prioritised.   

 

4.4 Within the service a number of more specific service improvements have also been 

undertaken, for example the management of pre-application enquiries through the use of the 

Northgate IT System.   

 

5. Consultations 

 

5.1 members of the service have been consulted on the service plan in the past and the service 

objectives complement the more strategic corporate objectives.   

 

6. Implications 

 

Financial implications (including any 

future financial commitments for the 

Council) 

 

The service should be adequately resourced if it 

is to meet the targets and service standards set 

out in the Plan.   

Legal and human rights implications 

 

None 

Assessment of risk 

 

Recruitment is a risk that has the potential to 

increase service costs.   

Equality and diversity implications 

A Customer First Analysis should be 

completed in relation to policy decisions 

and should be attached as an appendix 

to the report.  

 

None 

Page 10

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

 

 

 

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  

 

7.1 None.   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Strategic Service Objectives 
 

o To deliver a high quality and accessible service that meet the needs of all of 
Hyndburn’s residents in a fair and equitable way.  

o To ensure that our work seeks to create the best life possible for those that live and 
work in Hyndburn and those that visit the Borough.  

o To ensure that the service operates effectively and efficiently and that the financial 
controls are in place to ensure it delivers value for money.  

o To work with members of the service to effectively manage absence and keep the 
number of days lost to a low level.   

o To ensure that members of staff possess the skills needed to undertake their roles 
and that health and safety requirements are fully satisfied.   

o To ensure compliance with the Council’s equality policies and to assist in the 

delivery of the s.17 Crime and Disorder Implementation Plan. 

Corporate Strategy 
 

Our Vision 
 
Hyndburn – “The Place to be” 
 
By 2018 Hyndburn is no longer 
amongst the 100 most deprived 
areas in the Country. 
 
Our values 
 
o Customer First 
o Bright Futures 
o Narrow the Gap 
o Value for Money 
o Partnership 

 

Building Control 
 
o To assess all applications to 

ensure compliance with the 
building regulations. 

o To investigate breaches of the 
building regulations. 

o To Investigate reports of 
dangerous buildings and to 

secure public safety. 

Policy and Environment 
 

o To have in place an up to date 
Local Plan for Hyndburn by 2020.   

o To develop a Masterplan for 
Huncoat  

o The protection & enhancement of 
the built / natural environment.  

o The efficient management of 

allotments and garage tenancies.  

Engineering Services 
 

o To effectively deliver contracts 
o To provide engineering and 

technical support.   
o To manage land drainage systems 

on Council land.  
o To provide advice on structures. 
o To maintain LLPG and Geoplace 

o Street naming and numbering 

Hyndburn Borough Council 
 

Planning and Transportation Performance Plan – 2017-18 
Corporate Strategy 

 

Creating a place…. 
 

o with a thriving Economy and 
Sustainable Market Towns 

o Where people are Safe Confident 
and Proud to live 

o Which Safeguards the Environment 
o Which values and embraces 

Diversity 
o Where everyone has the opportunity 

for a healthier and longer life 
o With high levels of educational 

attainment 
o With a strong and balanced housing 

market where people choose to live 
o With Excellent Corporate 

Governance 

Development Management 
 

“Every Application Matters” 
o To determine all planning 

applications within the relevant 
timescales. 

o To investigate breaches of planning 
control in line with the Enforcement 
Code of Conduct. 

o To deliver an efficient and cost-
effective planning service 

o To determine 75% of major planning 
applications within 13 weeks. 

o To determine 80% of minor and 
other planning applications within 8 
weeks. 

o To offer a high quality pre-
application service to customers. 

o To ensure that 25% or less of 
appeals are allowed.   

o To upgrade the pre-application 

advice process.   

o To ensure that applications are 
determined within the relevant 
timescales. 

o To ensure that records of work 
undertaken are properly 
maintained. 

o To ensure that dangerous 
structures are investigated and 
action taken to make them safe.   

o To recover the costs of 
undertaking the service wherever 
possible.   

o To promote high quality building 
practices.  

 
o To start work on the Site Allocations 

DPD and partial review of Core 
Strategy 

o To develop a Masterplan for Huncoat 
o To adopt the Dev Man DPD 
o Monitor development 5 year HLS 
o To ensure the Borough’s trees and 

woodlands are protected. 
o To develop a high quality and cost 

effective allotment / garage service. 
o To secure environmental 

improvements in the Borough through 
external funding. 

o To complete capital works on time 
and within budget to an agreed 
specification.   

o To ensure that all construction 
activities are undertaken in a safe 
manner.  

o To respond to requests for 
services within statutory or locally 
agreed timescales 

o To maintain data and information 

systems in accordance with SLA’s.   

Service Objectives 

Performance Measurement 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

DATE: 22 March 2018 

PORTFOLIO: 

 

Cllr Miles Parkinson, Leader 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

Chief Planning and Transportation Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: 

 

Major Planning Applications 

EXEMPT REPORT  

(Local Government 

Act 1972, Schedule 

12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 

  

1. Purpose of Report 

 

1.1 To provide an update on Major Planning Applications within Hyndburn.   

 

2. Recommendations  

 

2.1 That the report be noted.   

 

3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 

 

3.1 Major planning applications are planning applications for 10 or more dwellings (or residential 

development on 0.5ha) or commercial development that has a floor space of 1,000sqm or 

more.  They are managed by the Development Management Service, usually by the Principal 

Planning Officer, Liz Thornber.   

 

3.2 There are between 20 - 25 major planning applications submitted to the Council each year.  

Appendix 1 lists the major applications that were submitted to the Council for determination 

from the start of January 2017.  Details of all planning applications are available to view on the 

Council’s website.  The attached list does not include applications relating to the discharge of 

planning conditions or variations of details.  Major planning applications should be determined 

within 13 weeks unless an extension of time has been agreed with the applicant.   

 

3.3 The Government publishes performance data on the speed at which local authorities determine 

major planning applications at:  

 

 https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-planning-application-

statistics#local-planning-authority-performance-tables 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4.

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-planning-application-statistics#local-planning-authority-performance-tables
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-planning-application-statistics#local-planning-authority-performance-tables


 

 

 

3.4 The performance for District Councils indicates that in the two years to September 2017 the 

Council determined 45 major planning applications, 83% of which (37 applications) were 

determined within the 13 week period or within the agreed extension of time.  19 planning 

applications were determined within 13 weeks (42%) without the use of a time extension.  

Delays in determining major planning applications are often encountered because of the need 

to sometimes enter into a legal agreement (s.106 agreement) or consult the Secretary of State 

(for example for the development at Highams Playing Fields).  Details of the major planning 

applications submitted since January 2017 are included at Appendix 1.   

 

3.5 Major planning applications are significant because they have the potential to bring about the 

larger scale changes that are sought by the Council’s Local Plan.  There is a need for new 

housing and employment development in Hyndburn and these schemes normally start life with 

pre-application discussion or a major planning application.  The development of land for 

employment development helps to ensure that companies can continue to develop in 

Hyndburn and create new jobs and services.  Large new housing schemes help to ensure that 

the residents of Hyndburn have a choice of good quality housing if they need to move or if 

people are seeking to move into Hyndburn.  Examples of schemes that have come forward 

through major planning applications include: 

 

 Lyndon playing fields, Great Harwood, 217 dwellings 

 Frontier Park (Whitebirk), 35ha of employment land 

 Tesco’s in Accrington and Great Harwood 

 Hyndburn Wind Farm, Oswaldtwistle Moor 

 Former Conservative Club, Cannon Street, apartments 

 Whatmore, Altham Business Park, industrial development 

 Senator International, Huncoat and Altham Business Parks, industrial development 

 Coach House Antiques, Altham Business Park, industrial development (storage) 

 Accrington Stanley, new stand development (not yet developed) 

 

3.6 The Council encourages pre-application engagement and as part of this initiative developers 

are sometimes invited to present their schemes to elected members.  Not only does this help 

keep members informed about proposed developments in their area but it also gives 

developers some feedback on the issues arising from the scheme.  It also seeks to ensure that 

if major planning applications are determined by Planning Committee then members of 

Planning Committee are better informed about the scheme and less likely to defer 

determination of the application.  This approach recognises the important role that elected 

members play in the planning process.   

 

3.7 The submission of major planning applications can be the result of a significant level of 

investment by the applicant.  It is therefore important that the Council is seen to be acting in a 

positive and professional manner throughout the process.  Although the Scheme of Delegation 

that is in place allows major planning applications to be determined using delegated powers, 

the Chief Planning and Transportation Officer will often ask for major planning applications to 

Page 16



 

 

be determined by the Council’s Planning Committee due to the scale and type of development 

that is being proposed.   

 

3.8 Fees for planning applications are set by Parliament by means of a regulation.  Although more 

officer time is spent on major planning applications the fee income associated with major 

development proposals helps ensure that the service is able to operate within budget.   

 

3.9 The Development Management Service is currently undergoing a review.  This will engage with 

stakeholders and will make recommendations on how the service can be approved.  The 

review is likely to be completed in April 2018 and it includes the Building control Service.   

 

4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 

 

4.1 None.   

 

5. Consultations 

 

5.1 None 

 

6. Implications 

 

Financial implications (including any 

future financial commitments for the 

Council) 

 

Major planning applications make a significant 

contribution to the income generated by the 

service.   

Legal and human rights implications 

 

None 

Assessment of risk 

 

The submission of a low number of major 

planning applications can have an adverse 

financial impact on the service and could result in 

the service over-spending at the end of the 

financial year.   

Equality and diversity implications 

A Customer First Analysis should be 

completed in relation to policy decisions 

and should be attached as an appendix 

to the report.  

 

The report is for information only and does not 

make policy recommendations.   

 

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  

 

7.1 None 

  

Page 17

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

 

Appendix 1  Major Planning Applications Submitted 1 January 2017 TO 9 March 2018 

 

Applicatio

n Number 

Application Site Description of development Decision 

11/17/0163 Land north of 

Blackburn Road 

south of 

Whitebirk Drive 

west of the M65 

motorway (near 

junction 6) and 

east of Abbott 

Clough Knuzden  

       

Major Reserved Matters Phase 2:  

Application for approval of landscaping, 

appearance, scale and layout of Phase 2 

pursuant to outline planning permission 

11/15/0154 for the construction of B2 general 

industrial unit and associated plant, parking, 

internal road and landscaping works 

 

Approved 

with 

Conditions 

18/07/2017 

11/17/0273 Martholme Water 

treatment Works 

Burnley Road 

Altham 

Major:  Erection of solar voltaic panels and 

associated works (including switchgear, 

fencing and integral connection to Martholme 

Water Treatment Works existing substation) 

 

Approved 

with 

Conditions 

27/09/2017 

11/17/0282 Former Britannia 

Mill Spring Street 

Rishton BB1 4LL 

Full Major: Resubmission of planning 

application 11/15/0347:  Erection of 42 No 

houses, 8 No apartments with associated 

access and landscaping (following demolition 

of existing structures) 

 

Approve 

subject to 

S106 and 

conditions 

27/10/2017 

11/17/0297 Land north of 

Blackburn Road 

south of 

Whitebirk Drive 

west of the M65 

motorway (near 

junction 6) and 

east of Abbott 

Clough Knuzden 

 

Major:  Phase 3 of reserved matters for the 

approval of landscaping, appearance, layout 

and scale pursuant to outline planning 

permission 11/15/0154 for construction of B8 

general storage and distribution unit and 

associated plant, parking internal accesses 

and landscaping works 

Approved 

with 

Conditions 

 

20/10/2017 

11/17/0313 12 B Easy Trim 

Metcalf Drive 

Altham Industrial 

Estate Altham 

 

Major Full:  Extension to existing industrial 

building to provide B1(c) use, including 

amendments to car park and access 

Approved 

with 

Conditions 

06/10/2017 

11/17/0314 Land at 

Yorkshire Street 

Huncoat 

Accrington 

Major Full:  Erection of 15 No affordable 

houses, including off road parking and 

garden area 

Approved 

with 

Conditions  

11/01/2018 

Page 18



 

 

11/17/0336 Land at Metcalf 

Drive Altham 

Business Park 

Altham 

 

Major Full:  Application to vary condition No 2 

pursuant to 11/15/0082 under Section 73 of 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

 

Withdrawn  

 

23/08/2017 

11/17/0340 Land north of 

Blackburn Road 

Knuzden 

Major Full:  Application for 1 No hotel and 1 

No conference/banqueting facility with 

associated parking, service yard internal 

access and landscaping 

 

Pending  

11/17/0401 Former Albert 

Mill and land 

adjacent Albert 

Street Rishton 

Major:  Application for outline (including 

access and layout) development of 45No 

dwellings with associated hard and soft 

landscaping following demolition of existing 

structures 

 

Approved 

with 

Conditions 

 

08/02/2018 

11/17/0421 8 Petre Road 

Clayton 

Business Park 

CLAYTON-LE-

MOORS BB5 

5JB 

 

Major:  Extension to manufacturing business 

to form storage/distribution warehouse 

including changes to parking and yard area 

 

Approved 

with 

Conditions 

21/12/2017 

11/17/0455 Highams Playing 

Fields 

Thorneyholme 

Road 

ACCRINGTON 

BB5 6BD 

Major Full: Creation of sports hub to include 

erection of new building (including office 

space, classrooms, gym and changing 

facilities and cafe area) (following demolition 

of existing building), erection of fencing and 

lighting, creation of 3G pitch and parking 

(including coach drop off area). 

 

Approved 

with 

Conditions 

02/01/2018 

11/17/0536 Land rear of 

Whatmore UK 

Ltd  Altham 

Business Park 

Altham Lane 

ALTHAM BB5 

5UR 

 

Major:  Erection of B8 warehouse and 

associated works 

Pending 

11/17/0544 Warcock Green 

Farm Mount St 

James 

KNUZDEN BB1 

2DR 

Major Outline:  For residential development 

including conversion of farmhouse and 

outbuildings with all matters reserved apart 

from access (resubmission of 11/17/0077) 

 

Pending 

Page 19



 

 

 

 

 

11/18/0034 Devine Fisheries 

Broad Oak Road 

ACCRINGTON 

BB5 2DG 

 

Major:  Outline planning permission (access, 

landscape, layout and scale) for erection of 

122 dwellings with associated infrastructure. 

 

Outline 

planning 

application 

11/18/0044 Accrington 

Stanley Crown 

Ground 

Livingstone 

Road 

ACCRINGTON 

BB5 5BX 

 

Major Full:  Variation of condition No 2 

(plans) pursuant to 11/16/0132 

Full 

Planning 

applications 

Page 20



1 
 

Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 

Date of meeting: 22nd March 2018 

Report of: Lyndsey Sims 

Title: Chief Executive 

 

SUBJECT  

Hyndburn Leisure Trust update report 

 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

To present to the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee planned developments across 

Hyndburn Leisure to promote organisational sustainability and to improve health & 

wellbeing outcomes for Hyndburn residents. 

 

RECCOMMENDATIONS 

That the report is noted 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5.



2 
 

1. Introduction 

Hyndburn Leisure manages the operation of eight leisure, sport, culture and community 
facilities requiring an operating budget of £2.5 million and a team of over 70 employees.  
Along with other Council services the Trust has been charged with achieving significant 
efficiency savings, resulting in a reduced annual grant from April 2018 of £75k being 
committed for the next three financial years.  This will mean that the management fee, 
which is payable as a subsidy to the Trust by the Council to operate the facilities and provide 
a broad range of affordable services, will reduce to just 3% of the Trust’s overall budget. 
 
2. Business Development Plan 

A Business Development plan is currently being developed to clearly identify how we will 
achieve service expansion to absorb the grant reduction and engage more people in positive 
lifestyle activities.   
 
To optimise efficiency, the plan will focus on realising the full potential of all facilities and 
services by creating a broad, accessible and high-quality offer to customers and we will 
maximise the take up of the offer.  The development of partnerships with like-minded 
organisations seeking to increase participation in physical activity and improve health is also 
key to our future development. 
 
The Business Development plan will contain a number of key areas, which will be led by 
members of the senior management team.  Each area will also include key goals which will 
be included in the Corporate Scorecard and a number of sub goals which will be monitored 
within individual manager and team work plans. 
 
Instrumental to our success is ensuring all employees are supported and provided with the 
necessary professional development and resource to deliver frontline services and back 
office support services. 
 
 

3. Corporate Scorecard 

Key performance indicators will be collated and analysed on a corporate scorecard.  The 

scorecard will provide Trustees and members of the Senior Management team with a clear 

overview of the Trust’s performance on a month-by-month basis.  Indicators which are on 

track to achieve end of year goals will be highlighted in green.  Any indicators which are 

showing signs of being at risk of underachieving against the end of year target will be 

highlighted in yellow and any indicators which are underperforming against target will be 

highlighted in red. Exception reports will be presented at future Board meetings to identify    

how overachievements have been made and our plans to build on this success and to 

explain any underachievement, highlighting the plan to improve performance. 

A draft scorecard for 2018/19 can be seen on pages 3-4.

Page 22



3 
 

 

P
age 23



4 
 

 

 

 

P
age 24



5 
 

4. Facility Development 

4.1 Thermal Suite at Hyndburn Leisure Centre 

Facility development remains a high priority for the Trust to enable us to increase income 

generation at the buildings in order to assist us to be financially sustainable in the future. An 

order was placed with Pulse Design and Build for the design, supply, installation, 

maintenance and financing of a Thermal Suite and Beauty Therapy Room area at Hyndburn 

Leisure Centre. The project started on October 2nd and the facility opened to the public on 

January 22nd.  Early participation data shows that attendance and income is significantly 

higher since opening compared to the previous year. 

4.2 Facility Maintenance 

We are working with HBC to progress capital bids for the following maintenance 

requirements across our leisure estate: 

 Studio floor restoration at HLC 

 Re-roofing at HLC 

 Re-roofing/repair at MHLC 

 Sinking fund for the 3G pitch at HLC 

 Air Handling unit at HLC 

Phase 4 capital developments at the Town Hall have been committed, however they are 

expected to be completed 3 months later than planned.  Our 2018/19 budgets have been 

updated to reflect this delay. 

4.3 Fitness Equipment Replacement 

The Trust’s main income generating activity is Fitness and this income stream is market 

sensitive and the arrival of a new 24/7 gym could have a negative effect on membership 

levels.  At present we have a membership base of circa. 2,500 members and an annual 

income target of £800k.  We have a strong track record of retaining members but are 

operating in an ever-expanding market place. For us to maintain market share and meet 

retention and growth targets it is important for the Trust to provide high quality fitness 

equipment, which is periodically replenished to ensure the equipment offer remains fit for 

purpose and keeps pace with customer expectations.  Fitness equipment manufacturers 

continue to innovate with design and technology, and equipment used commercially has an 

expected life span of around five years for Cardio Vascular (CV) and up to seven years for 

strength. 

 

The CV equipment at Hyndburn Leisure Centre and Mercer Hall Leisure Centre is now at its 

expected replacement point. Therefore, a process of procurement will commence in 

February 2018 to lease new CV equipment and strength and functional training equipment.  

Page 25



6 
 

The Trust does not currently have the cash available to purchase the equipment, therefore 

at this stage leasing over a period of 60 months is our preferred approach. 

At this stage, we are not planning to replace equipment at Hyndburn Academy, as it is not 

felt that we would be able to generate additional membership income to cover the cost of 

this investment. 

Understanding the expectations of our customers and non-customers will enable the Trust 

to deliver a gym refurbishment which retains our existing membership base and attracts 

new gym users to our facilities.  Therefore, we will carry out a range of consultations, both 

digitally and face-to-face involving customers, partners and employees to inform our tender 

specification.   

We will also take advice from industry experts to ensure that we gain best value and provide 

a high-quality service for the local community. 

To deliver a return on the equipment investment, memberships at Hyndburn and Mercer 
Hall will need to increase.  Membership levels after the equipment replacement are 
required to achieve an increase of 90 members in total across both sites to recover the 
refurbishment and equipment lease costs.  Increased membership will be achieved more 
rapidly if replacement and refurbishment is completed ahead of the September sales peak. 

 

4.4 Refurbishment of key areas linked to Fitness Memberships 

To gain maximum impact from the replacement of fitness equipment at both sites, key 

areas at HLC and MHLC require refurbishment.  Namely; the gym and group fitness studio at 

MHLC and the gym, reception area, café and group fitness studios at HLC. At present, the 

cost of carrying out such work is unknown.  Therefore the Trust will be carrying out a 

process to identify design options and associated costs to refurbish these areas.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



7 
 

5.  Health & Wellbeing 

 

The Trust is committed to providing local people with opportunities to start, stay and 

succeed in sport and physical activity.  We deliver a range of preventative and targeted 

health improvement interventions, which support people to improve their health and 

wellbeing. 

 

The Trust has successfully designed and implemented a series of bespoke, outcome-focused 

interventions for commissioners, which have enabled the Trust to build a positive 

reputation as a high-quality deliverer.  We have also successfully demonstrated our ability 

to deliver GP based interventions and weight management programmes and aim to 

continue to develop this relationship over the coming year.  

 

The Trust are committed to working with partners including; the Hyndburn Health & 

Wellbeing partnership and Hyndburn Homes to deliver positive health outcomes for local 

people.  

 

5.1 Sport England Local Delivery Pilot – Pennine Lancashire 

Pennine Lancashire has been successful as one of the 12 national local delivery pilot areas 

by Sport England.  Around £100million of National Lottery funding will be invested in the 

pilot schemes over four years, to create innovative partnerships that will make it easier for 

people in these communities to access sport and physical activity; encouraging a better 

collaboration between a wider range of local organisations, including voluntary groups, 

social enterprises, local authorities, faith organisations, schools, GPs and parenting groups. 

 

5.2 Sport England – Tackling Inactivity and Economic Deprivation 

The Trust has successfully progressed to stage 2 of this Sport England grant programme.  In 

total 331 applications were received by Sport England.  Hyndburn Leisure is one of 24 

applications taken forward to stage 2, bidding for a share of £1.9m of funding.  Our 

application focuses on supporting individuals and families living in the most deprived areas 

of the borough, who are living in rented or social housing to move from being inactive to 

participating in at least 30 minutes of activity every week.  We are working with a range of 

partners to develop our stage 2 bid and will be submitting this to Sport England in early 

April. 

 

5.3  LCC Active Lives & Healthy Weight programmes 

Hyndburn Leisure continues to work in partnership with a consortium of East Lancashire 

Leisure Trusts to deliver key health & wellbeing programmes for Lancashire County Council.  

The current contract runs to 31st March 2019 with the option for a +1 and +1. 

 

Page 27



8 
 

Hyndburn Active Lives & Healthy Weight participation results for the period June 2016 to 

June 2017 are detailed in the infographic on page 8. 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 28


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of Last Meeting
	3. Planning Business Plan Update
	Planning Business Plan Update - Appendix

	4. Major Planning Applications
	5. Hyndburn Leisure Trust Update Report

